ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COMVERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 31, 2003
3:17 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Tom Anderson, Chair
Representative Bob Lynn, Vice Chair
Representative Carl Gatto

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative David CGuttenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT

Represent ati ve Nancy Dahl strom
OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representative Vic Kohring
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO 148

"An Act instructing the State Board of Registration for
Architects, Engineers, and Land Surveyors to adopt mninmum
techni cal standards relating to the practice of surveying."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 164

"An Act relating to the state's sovereign inmmunity for certain
actions regarding injury, illness, or death of state-enployed
seanen and to workers' conpensation coverage for those seanen;
and providing for an effective date.”

- MOVED HB 164 OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE Bl LL NO. 169
"An Act increasing the amount of revenue received by the state
from charitable gamng activities; and providing for an
effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS ACTI ON

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- March 31, 2003



BILL: HB 148
SHORT TI TLE: LAND SURVEY STANDARDS
SPONSOR(S):  REPRESENTATI VE( S) HARRI S

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

03/ 04/ 03 0377 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

03/ 04/ 03 0377 (H L&C

03/ 04/ 03 0377 (H REFERRED TO LABOR & COVMERCE

03/ 31/ 03 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 164

SHORT TI TLE: CLAI M8 BY STATE- EMPLOYED SEAMEN
SPONSOR(S): RLS BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

03/ 05/ 03 0435 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

03/05/03 0435 (H L&C, JUD, FIN

03/ 05/ 03 0435 (H) FN1: ZERQ( ADM

03/ 05/ 03 0435 (H GOVERNOR S TRANSM TTAL LETTER

03/ 05/ 03 0435 (H REFERRED TO LABOR & COMVERCE

03/ 14/ 03 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 14/ 03 (H) <Bi || Hearing Postponed>

03/ 31/ 03 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 169

SHORT TI TLE: CHARI TABLE GAM NG REVENUE
SPONSCR(S): RLS BY REQUEST CF THE GOVERNOR

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

03/ 05/ 03 0442 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

03/ 05/ 03 0442 (H L&C, FIN

03/ 05/ 03 0442 (H FN1: (REV)

03/ 05/ 03 0442 (H GOVERNOR' S TRANSM TTAL LETTER

03/ 05/ 03 0442 (H REFERRED TO LABOR & COWMERCE

03/ 31/ 03 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

PETE FELLMAN, Staff

to Representative John Harris
Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 2- March 31, 2003



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 148 on behalf of the sponsor
and answer ed questi ons.

SUSAN COX, Chief Assistant Attorney Genera

Cvil Division (Juneau)

Departnent O Law

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 164 for the adm nistration,
explaining how the injuries of state-enployed seanen have been
handl ed under the workers' conpensation and nmaritine |aw
systens.

BRAD THOMPSON, Director

Di vision of R sk Managenent

Departnent of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 164, describing the nunbers
and costs of state ferry crew clains under maritinme |aw as
conpared to the clainms of other state enployees covered by
Wor kers' Conpensati on.

DARRYL TSEU, Regional Director

I nl and Boatnen's Union of the Pacific, Al aska Region

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Addressed concerns about HB 164 and
described the hazardous work conditions on board a ferry that
cause higher rates of accidents.

PAUL GRCSSI, Director

Di vision of Wrkers' Conpensation,

Depart ment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered workers' conpensation questions on
HB 164.

LARRY PERSI LY, Deputy Conm ssioner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 169 and proposed anmendnents on
behal f of the adm nistration.

JAMES REI D, Adm ni strator

Juneau Moose Lodge

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified against HB 169, explaining how
charities that sell their own pull-tabs will be inpacted.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- March 31, 2003



DAVI D SANDEN, Ceneral Manager

Mul ti pl e-beneficiary permttee (MBP)

Juneau Montessori Center

Sout heast Al aska Friends of Montessori

Juneau Dance Unlimted

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified against HB 169 but proposed an
alternative sustainable gamng tax that would be split with the
muni cipalities where the noney is raised.

BOB LOESCHER, President

Juneau Tlingit & Haida Community Council;

Advi sor

Al aska Native Brother G and Canp

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Qpposed HB 169 and stated that | ocal
governnments should not be taxing pull-tabs.

TED BROWN
Al aska | ndoor Sports
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified against HB 169, noting that
increasing state revenues on charitable gamng from $2 mllion
to $12.5 mllion won't work.

DW GHT McBRI DE, Oper at or

Ket chi kan
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed HB 169, stating that the pull-tab
mar ket will not bear a | ower gross incone.

LEONARD WVELLS

Homer
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified against HB 169, explaining that
people who are heavy pull-tab players will definitely notice a

| ower payout rate.

TIM SM TH

Nome Fi sherman's Associ ation

None, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in opposition to HB 169 and suggested
that the legislature renove the prohibition on electronic
ganbl i ng machi nes.

DAVI D LAMBERT
Fai r banks, Al aska

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- March 31, 2003



POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Qpposed HB 169 and stated that few
manuf acturers nake 72 percent payout ganes.

JESSE VANDERZANDER

Al aska Qut door Council;

Al aska Fish & Wldlife Conservation Fund

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 169 and
cautioned that decreasing the vendor and operator's shares could
cl ose down their operations.

VWAYNE STEVENS, Executive Director

Kodi ak Chanber of Conmerce

Kodi ak, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Spoke against HB 169, noting that the
reduced payout will reduce player participation, thereby cutting
revenue to charities.

DEBBI E BUSSDI EKER

Al aska | ndoor Sports Distributing;

Kenai Peninsula Aerie 3525 Auxiliary

Kenai, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed HB 169, warning that the bill wll
dramatically decrease pull-tab sal es.

Rl CKY GEASE, Executive Director

Kenai Convention and Visitors Bureau

Kenai, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified against HB 169, stating that the
state should not be setting price limts on the free narket of
pul | -tab payouts.

JOHN LOPEZ

Denali Gam ng Supply

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Qpposed HB 169, explaining that it wll
i ncrease annual taxes from $3,000 to $30, 000.

JI M PEOCT, General Manager

Whal er Casi no Supply

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified against HB 169, noting that
pl ayers dictate the pull-tab market.

GENE HANSEN

Al aska State Fraternal Order of Eagl es;
Aerie 1037 Far North Eagl es

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- March 31, 2003



Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in opposition to HB 169 and predicted
that the Eagles' single permt incone of $15,000 will be hal ved
as a result of the bill.

GREG PETERSON, Enpl oyee

Al aska | ndoor Sports Distributing

Ket chi kan, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified against HB 169, criticizing those
who di sm ss the genuine public outcry against this bill.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
TAPE 03-25, SIDE A

Number 0001

CHAI R TOM ANDERSON cal | ed the House Labor and Conmerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:17 p.m Represent ati ves
Anderson, Lynn, Gatto, Crawford, and Guttenberg were present at
the call to order. Representati ve Rokeberg arrived as the
neeting was in progress. Representative Kohring was also in

at t endance.

HB 148- LAND SURVEY STANDARDS

Number 0055

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 148, "An Act instructing the State Board of
Regi stration for Architects, Engineers, and Land Surveyors to
adopt mninmum technical standards relating to the practice of
surveying."

Number 0070

PETE FELLMAN, Staff to Representative John Harris, Alaska State
Legi slature, presented HB 148 on behalf of the sponsor. He
noted that HB 148 is an effort to address problens with |and
surveys. He testified that various types of surveys are done
for banks, title conpanies, and real estate conpanies. He said
that people who know what they want [in a survey] are generally
happy with the results. However, for people who are not well
versed in |and surveying, they may overpay or they get surveys
that aren't accurate or don't satisfy the bank or real estate
conpany. M. Fellman noted that the surveying industry as a
whol e maintains very high standards through organizations such
as the Alaska Society of Professional Land Surveyors, which is
affiliated with the Anerican Congress on Surveying and Mapping.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- March 31, 2003



He gave several exanples of how the industry is concerned about
doi ng a professional job.

Nunber 0276

MR. FELLMAN noted that in Alaska, the governor appoints the
menbers of the Board of Registration for Architects, Engineers
and Land Surveyors. The board sets the mninmm standards for
surveyor testing, required schooling, and experience. Housed in
the Division of GCccupational Licensing [in the Departnent of
Comuni ty and Econom ¢ Devel opnent ], t he board adopt s
regul ati ons, mnakes licensing decisions, and takes disciplinary
action agai nst surveyors who violate the |aw.

MR. FELLMAN, noted, however, that the board has not set m ninum
standards for an actual survey, and that is the intent of HB
148. He said he researched [survey laws in] 26 states, and only
one state did not have m ninmum standards for surveys. He said
he is working with Patrick Kalen, director of legislative
affairs for the Alaska Society of Professional Land Surveyors

who is presently in Colorado at a convention addressi ng nati onal
m ni nrum standards. M. Fellman conveyed M. Kalen's interest in
i ncorporating these national standards into HB 148.

Number 0484

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked M. Fellman about [March 29, 2003]
correspondence in the nenbers' bill packets from [Jim Col ver,
Surveyor] who wote that the Anmerican Land Title Association
al ready has standards for surveys that nust be followed for
title insurance.

VR. FELLMAN replied that there are standards for title
i nsurance, but the standards are not in statute. The industry
has a very good system in place, but Alaska' s board has not
adopted any standards. He stated that the industry tries to
present itself in a professional manner, but that doesn't nean
[ every surveyor acts professionally].

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if each title conpany makes up its
own st andar ds.

Number 0565
MR. FELLMAN said in practice there are inportant variations

bet ween types of surveys. Sonetinmes title conpanies and banks
speci fy what should be included in a survey report; other tines,

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- March 31, 2003



they depend on the surveyor to decide what to cover in the work
pr oduct . Some surveys |ocate corner posts, section lines, and
easenents; other surveys show septic tanks, buildings, and other
I nprovenents.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked why a surveyor mght object to this
bill.

MR. FELLMAN replied that if he were a surveyor, he would not
object to pronoting high standards for the industry.

Nunmber 0662

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked for exanples of problens wth
surveyors' worKk.

MR. FELLMAN said he did not personally know of any problens. He
said M. Kalen had told him that the lack of formalized norns
for surveying in Alaska leads to undesired results, and he
supported the sponsor taking this action. M. Fellman said he
doesn't want people paying for [elenents of] a survey they don't
need or want.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if there mght be different
ki nds of surveys approved rather than a uniform survey.

MR. FELLMAN replied that M. Kalen said that if HB 148 states a
m ni rum standard for surveys, he nmay not be able to provide a
sinple section line survey. By allowing the board to adopt a
standard, then professionals are nmaking the determ nation [about
what type of survey is appropriate].

Nunber 0817

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked what this bill does about bad
surveys. He asked if current state |aw makes a surveyor liable
for a bad survey. He described his experience of buying into

the Rabbit Creek Heights and Rabbit Creek View subdivisions
where the original survey was fl awed. The nunicipality platted
the subdivision, he bought title insurance, then several years
| ater learned that the surveys were all bad. The | andowners
cannot sell the property because they cannot acquire title
insurance on it. He asked if HB 148 does anythi ng about doubl e-
checki ng a surveyor's worKk.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- March 31, 2003



MR. FELLMAN said a citizen can conplain to the board, which can
take a surveyor's |license. M. Fellman said he was only
famliar with this recourse.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD replied that the surveyor did lose his
license in Alaska, but that didn't help any of the honmeowners.
He said the bills for new surveys are running into the hundreds
of thousands of dollars for each property owner. He said he
wondered how frequently this happens. The surveyor should be
| iable for these costs--not the honmeowners.

Nunmber 0983

MR. FELLMAN said perhaps the board should consider requiring
surveyors to have liability insurance and bondi ng.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD said he would like the bill's sponsor to
address the problemof faulty surveys.

Nunber 1014

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked why there is no testinony fromthe
board or fromthe Al aska Society of Professional Land Surveyors.

MR. FELLMAN said that M. Kalen [who is a nenber of the board]
is out-of-state at a surveyor's convention.

CHAI R ANDERSON noted that M. Colver, the surveyor who sent an
urgent email opposing HB 148, is not present to testify today.

MR.  FELLMAN, responding to a question from Representative
Rokeberg, noted that Representative Harris w shes to have the
commttee hold the bill

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noted that it's inportant to hear from
board nenbers about the bill

Number 1123

CHAI R ANDERSON said that public hearing on HB 148 w Il be Kkept
open and that the bill will be held over.

HB 164- CLAI M5 BY STATE- EMPLOYED SEAMEN

Nunber 1125

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- March 31, 2003



CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO. 164, "An Act relating to the state's sovereign
immunity for certain actions regarding injury, illness, or death
of state-enployed seanen and to workers' conpensation coverage
for those seanen; and providing for an effective date.”

Nunber 1154

SUSAN COX, Chief Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Cvil D vision
(Juneau), Departnment O Law, gave a brief overview of HB 164,
which was introduced at the request of the governor. Thi s
| egislation seeks to anmend AS 09.50.250 [Actionable clains
against the state] by which the legislature has waived the
state's immnity fromlaw suits. She said the specific purpose
of this bill is to withdraw the state's waiver of immunity, or
its consent to suit, and instead provide workers' conpensation
coverage for state-enployed seanen in the case of injury,
i1l ness, or death.

M5. COX explained that state-enployed seanen, who work nostly
aboard the Alaska Mirine H ghway System ("Mrine H ghways")
[ Departnent of Transportation & Public Facilities], have
remedi es today under federal provisions of maritine |law and the
Jones Act [46 U. S.C. 688], as do other seanen enployed in the
private sector. For eight vyears, the state had collective
bargai ning agreenments with the unions representing the ferry
wor kers and provi ded workers' conpensation coverage in |ieu of
those maritinme renedies. Then, a court decision in 1991 ruled
that the state could not by contract or collective bargaining
agreenent waive the enployee's individual rights to those
remedi es. However, in an earlier case, the Al aska Suprene Court
wote that if the state wished to provide workers' conpensation
coverage instead of subjecting itself to Ilitigation by its
seanen enpl oyees, the state could do so by changing the statute.

Nunmber 1263

M5. COX said the purpose of the bill is to get out of the
business of litigating over injuries that occur when the
enpl oyee is a seanen. The state would instead provide workers

conpensati on coverage. This would create a uniform system of

wor kers conpensation for all state enployees; there would [no
| onger be] a separate scenario for state-enployed seanen. Thi s
| egi slation would not affect the rights of seanen who are not
state enployees nor would it inpose state |aw on federal
maritime law. The bill withdraws the state's consent to be sued
under federal maritinme | aw

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- March 31, 2003



Number 1323

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked why the fiscal note is zero despite
the cost savings to the state.

M5. COX explained that the statute of limtations for a claim
under the Jones Act is three years. The effective date of this
bill is July 1, [2003]. She said this neans that for any injury
or illness that occurs prior to July 1, the seaman would still

have up to three years to file a lawsuit, and the state would
continue litigating these cases for several years.

Number 1376

M5. COX explained that she is enployed by the Attorney Ceneral's
office to defend personal injury litigation; her position is
funded by the Division of Ri sk Mnagenent ("R sk Managenent")
[ Departnent of Admnistration]. In the long term the state
expects to stop litigating seanen's clainms, but she said she
can't predict when there will be cost savings. She does expect
a legal challenge to this bill by a seaman or by a group that
prefers the old system under maritine |aw She predicted the
case will go to the Al aska Suprene Court before it is settled.
Nunber 1412

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked why the state was subject to the
Jones  Act i nstead of covering enployees wth workers'
conpensati on. He questioned if seanen receive |less benefits

under wor kers' conpensati on.

M5. COX provided background on HB 164. Before 1983, state-
enpl oyed seanen were covered by federal maritine |aw In 1963,
the attorney general was asked whether Al aska ferry enployees
were covered by this federal l|law or whether the state's worker
conpensation |aw applied. The opinion of the attorney general
at that tine was that because the state had agreed in statute to
be sued in personal injury actions, it had opened the door to
maritime law jurisdiction, and so the federal l|law would apply
unl ess the state closed that door. She said the purpose of HB
164 is to close the door a little. For a period of years, the
state had Jones Act coverage for these enployees, but in 1983,
the ferry worker unions and the state decided through collective
bargaining to use the workers conpensation system She said
that system worked quite well for a period of eight years unti
it was invalidated by the Al aska Suprene Court.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- March 31, 2003



Nunmber 1436

M5. COX explained the difference between workers conpensation
and the current renedies under the Jones Act and maritine |aw.
Under maritinme law, if workers are injured on the job, |eave the
vessel, and cannot return to work for weeks or nonths, they
receive their wages to the end of the voyage, wthout the
deduction of any sick leave; they also get a $45 dollar a day
stipend until they have recovered sufficiently to return to
wor k. They can use sick |eave or vacation |eave to add onto the
$45 a day mai ntenance paynment to get the equival ent of a regul ar
check until they return to work.

Nunber 1523

M5. COX noted that wunder workers conpensation, if the workers
were going to be off work for a period of weeks or nonths, they
woul d receive a regular paynment of 80% of their average net
wage, tax free, at no cost to their sick leave or annual |eave
accounts. She said that for the enployee who is not interested
in suing anyone, the wage replacenent of workers' conpensation
is a better deal than a $45 a day stipend. In both
ci rcunstances, the injured workers' nedical bills are paid.

M5. COX comented that under the Jones Act, enployees who have
nore serious injuries can hire an attorney. They have to prove
in court that the enployer was sonehow at fault for the injury.
They can file a lawsuit within three years, and they can seek
types of damages that are not recoverable under workers’
conpensati on. Those damages are pain and suffering, as well as
nore noney for their |oss of earnings, and [repaynent for] the
use of their | eave accounts.

Nunmber 1636

M5. COX testified that the other significant difference between
the two systens is that workers' conpensati on does not cover an
illness unless it's an occupational disease. Under the maritine
| aw mai nt enance and cure system if workers get sick aboard a
vessel , regardl ess  of whet her it's related to working
conditions, they're entitled to all of the benefits they'd
receive for a work-related injury.

M5. COX concluded that the two systens are not mrror inmages

but the admnistration thinks it's a fair trade [for state-
enpl oyed seanen].

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- March 31, 2003



Nunmber 1688

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if the seanen enpl oyees are going
to consider this a fair trade.

M5. COX said all state enployees, except the seanen, are covered
by the [Al aska W rkers Conpensation Act] and receive the sane
benefits. The seanmen have the traditional maritine remedies as
well as |eave wusage, retirenent and benefits, occupational
disability, and a variety of other state benefits. She said the
litigation is costly and consunes a |ot of resources which would
not be consuned in a no-fault system|like workers' conpensation.

Nunber 1746

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if the savings are achieved by
the seanmen losing their procedural rights under the maritine
| aw.

M5. COX replied that the workers' conpensation is a no-fault
system Under workers' conpensation, there is a presunption
that when there is an injury in the workplace it is work-
rel ated, so benefits flow in nost cases w thout much dispute.
If there is an issue, the enployee is entitled to the full
adm nistrative hearing process as well as rights to appeal to
the superior court. Under HB 164, the enployee would no |onger
have the right to sue the State of A aska for pain and
suffering, enotional distress, the value of the wused |eave,
attorneys fees, or interest. She summarized that the val ue of
the claim under the Jones Act is conpletely different under
wor kers conpensati on. The latter is an economc formula based
on the enployee's earning history and the degree to which the
person is inpaired.

Number 1850

BRAD THOMPSON, Director, Division of R sk Managenent, Departnent
of Adm nistration, explained that his agency admnisters self-

i nsurance progranms for state agencies, including the maritine
liability program He explained the information contained in
the nmenbers' bill packet, which analyzes the clains for the

Mari ne H ghways enpl oyees [under the Jones Act] conpared to the
claims from state enployees covered by workers' conpensation.
The frequency of clainms per 100 FTEs [full-time equival ents] was
based on five years experience for all state enployees. For the
Marine H ghways enployees, the rate of claim was 41 per 100

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- March 31, 2003



FTEs, whereas the overall injury rate for other state enployees
was 8 clains per 100 FTEs. In contrast, the five state agencies
with the highest nunber of clainms had a rate of claim of 10 per
100 FTEs. The average cost per 100 clains was $197,000 for
ferry enpl oyees conpared to $64, 000 for other state enpl oyees.

MR. THOMPSON expl ai ned why his agency's fiscal note did not show
a savings. He said the fiscal note reflects the agency's actua
funding. Each year the agency receives an appropriation for the
clains they expect to cone due, a pay-as-you-go plan. The
agency covers nmany other state prograns besides the maritine
unit and has unfunded liabilities of approximately $100 ml1lion.

Number 2001

MR. THOVWPSON estimated a significant savings from HB 164. Under
wor kers' conpensation coverage, he said he expects the average
cost for 100 FTE seanen to drop from the $197,000 figure to
$64,000 - typical for the other enployees - or a reduction of
$133, 000 per 100 FTEs. He estinmated that applying that savings
to the 650 enployees in the maritime unit would result in about

$865,000 in direct expense reduction. He said he can't show
that in a fiscal note because his agency is still dealing with
the ongoing, outstanding liabilities. He said there will be

significant savings down the road.
Number 2049

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG said that he and Representative
Crawford conme from the construction industry which has a really
hi gh acci dent rate. He described these nunbers as amazing. He
asked how wor ker safety prograns affect the equation.

MR, THOWPSON replied that the Al aska Marine H ghway System does
have an active safety program with followup investigations of
acci dents onboard the vessels. His financial information shows
the Risk Mnagenent dollars expended in «clainms, for the
attorneys for both sides, as well as the renedies paid to the
enpl oyee. He said there are other state costs that are not part
of the Ri sk Managenent budget. For exanple, the Marine H ghways
budget mnust cover the unearned wages that are paid to the
enpl oyees who are not able to finish their sailing, he said.

Number 2107

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- March 31, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked several questions about the
conparative data on the frequency and cost of state-enployed
seanan cl ai ns.

MR, THOMPSON replied that these nunbers - on a per 100 FTE basis
and a five year average - reflect the expected average savings,
based on the injury rate for the top five departnents. He said
the average annual savings is based on a 100 FTE analysis,
applied to the roughly 655 positions in Marine Hi ghways.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Thonmpson whether he had
researched the rates of injury by enploynent for other states.

Nunmber 2160

MR. THOWPSON said he has not seen conparisons of maritinme units
for other states. To a followup question from Representative
Rokeberg, M. Thonpson replied that the Departnent of Labor &
Wor kforce  Devel opnent, Division of Wrkers  Conpensati on,
anal yzes the clains by job category. He recalled that those
nunbers are simlar to the ones he presented today, about 8
injuries per 100 FTEs. He said the Dvision of Wrkers'

Conpensation would not have claim infornation on the maritine
unit.

Nunber 2193

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said he was dunbfounded as to why the
| egi sl ature didn't hear about these potential savings |ast year.

MR, THOWPSON replied that this [approach to saving noney] has
been thought of before but not presented [to the |egislature].

CHAI R ANDERSON noted that there are two fiscal notes, one from
the D vision of R sk Managenent and the other from the Division
of Workers' Conpensati on.

Nunber 2252

DARRYL TSEU, Regional Director, Inland Boatnen's Union of the
Pacific, Alaska Region, explained that he represents union
menbers in both private and public enploynent. He said that
uni on attorneys are review ng HB 164.

Nunber 2296

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- March 31, 2003



MR. TSEU said that his concerns involve the workers' clains for
the nore serious injuries. He said he has personally wtnessed
traumatic maritine accidents, for exanple, a fellow worker who
was permanently disabled with broken legs and a skull fracture
when a |ine separated. He said this worker was conpensated for
the work he was no longer able to do. He said the accident
rates of ferry workers and other state workers are not easily
conpared. An office injury doesn't conpare with falling down a
stairway on a vessel. For exanple, on the MW/ Bartlett, the crew
carries all food from the car deck to the galley up a 20 - 30
foot |adder with an angle of 60 degrees and six-inch w de steps.

MR. TSEU noted that he is also concerned about the [lack of
savings in] the fiscal note.

MR. TSEU nentioned the problem of treating public enployees in
the union differently fromthe workers with private enpl oyers.

TAPE 03-25, SIDE B
Nunber 2378

MR. TSEU said private and public enployers should have to foll ow
the sanme rules in caring for their enployees. As a nerchant
mariner enployed by the state since 1991, he said he has
personally seen the problenms of getting nedical bills paid

through [R sk Mnagenent's agent]. He said it is not
necessarily true that the state covers nedical bills when there
is a injury or accident on board the vessel. He said his union

has been aggressively looking for health care outside the state
but has had trouble getting key figures about costs and

accidents from the state. He questioned whether there wll be
significant savings [by changing to the workers' conpensation
systenj. He said the Marine H ghways has becone nore active in
lowering the injuries and costs through on-board safety
progranms. But, he said, maritinme work, |ike construction, has a
hi gher percentage of injuries on the job. On the ferries,

t hi ngs nove around on the ships, and ships nust navigate 20- and
30-foot seas. That novenent of a vessel presents nore occasions
for injuries.

Number 2271

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he understands that a job on a noving
ship is nore dangerous, but he asked how that related to
i nsur ance. He asked why one insurance plan is better than the
ot her for [seanen].

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -16- March 31, 2003



MR. TSEU replied that the Jones Act set out nore protection for

sail ors. The difference in conpensation between vesse

enpl oyees and ot her enpl oyees are significant. Vessel enployees
do not have the pay scales of the nornmal state worker, for
exanple, nerit increases. People with 20 years experience are

often paid the sane as those with 2 or 3 years experience. And
he said that training requirenents and costs are steep. He said
no other state enployee has to invest $500 in training just to
get a job as a di shwasher.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked again why a person with a dangerous
job needs to have different insurance. He said he understands

that there will be nore clains and the clains will be nore
expensi ve.

Nunber 2164

MR, TSEU said that he could not answer that question because
he's not an insurance expert. He said that workers'
conpensation |imts what an individual my rightly deserve.

Currently, the legal system helps determ ne how nuch an injury
is worth.

MR. TSEU, in responding to a question from Representative Gatto,
said he didn't think nerchant mariners deserve anything special;
he said he's here to protect the existing rights of his fellow
wor kers.

Nunber 2097

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD described his experience when he fell
during construction work on the Sullivan Sports Arena. Hi s
wor kers' conpensation benefit was divided by 52 weeks, so it
anounted to about one-fifth of his weekly wage, and he m ssed
the entire work season that year. He asked how such an acci dent
woul d be treated for a seasonal enployee of the Marine H ghways.

MR. TSEU replied that about 40 percent of the enployees are
seasonal, which nmeans that in the seniority system a person nay
work only two or three nonths in the first several years.
Therefore, it takes three to five years of seasonal work to earn
any benefits such as sick |eave or vacation tine. Under the
Jones Act, a person receives maintenance and cure stipends of
$45 a day. He said ferry workers don't tend to msuse their
| eave; they use it because it's easier to use than filing clains
with R sk Mnagenent's insurer, Pacific dainms, |Inc. He

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -17- March 31, 2003



descri bed problenms with the conpany, such as checks being l|ate
and the figures not matching.

Nunber 1949

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Tseu to clarify whether he's a
busi ness agent or a nenber of the union's professional staff.

MR. TSEU replied that he's the regional director and a union
menber; he's an enployee wth the State of Al aska on |eave
wi t hout pay.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG rem nded M. Tseu that his union and 12
other bargaining units groups opted out of the state health
i nsurance system several years ago.

Nunmber 1897

MR. TSEU expl ai ned that this change occurred before his tinme [as
regional director]. He said the Division of Retirenment and
Benefits [ Departnent of Adm ni stration] has had trouble
providing the information the wunion needs to select another
health care insurer. He said his union officials signed a
letter of agreenment with the previous admnistration, saying
they would try to find other alternatives for health care.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noted that the prior governor forced
several collective bargaining units out of the state [health
i nsurance] pool. He asked if the union currently has health
i nsur ance.

MR, TSEU said that whenever there is an injury on the vessel
it's the responsibility of the enployer to pay for all expenses

related to work injuries. He said that the insurance that is
provided to all state enployees should not have to be used to
cover any accident or illness; the enployer should pay these
expenses.

Nunber 1773

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Tseu to clarify whether the
uni on supports or opposes the bill

MR. TSEU said the union neither supports nor opposes the bill
but is looking at it carefully. The wunion is waiting for a
response fromthe Attorney General's Ofice [Departnent of Law].
He expressed concern that there may be a savings of $850,000

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 18- March 31, 2003



[through Ri sk Managenent] but [increased] expenses of $2 mllion
[in workers' conpensation]. These nunbers need to be exam ned,
he said, whether it's here or in the House Judiciary Standing
Commttee [the next commttee of referral].

CHAI R ANDERSON noted that the judiciary commttee can | ook at
the |l egal issues associated with coverage under the Jones Act.

Nunmber 1695

PAUL CGROSSI, Director, Division of Wrkers' Conpensat i on
Department of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent, appeared before the
committee to answer questions.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. G ossi about the incidents of
injury per enploynent type as presented by M. Thonpson.

MR. CGROSSI replied that there are no incidents of accidents for
state enployees as high as ferry workers at the rate of 41 per
100 FTEs, as noted by M. Thonpson. The highest rates would be
in the construction and tinber industry, he said. He expl ai ned
that the fishing industry, which is not covered under workers'
conpensation, also has a very high incident rate. He does not
have accurate statistics on seanen [because they are currently
covered by the federal maritine |aws]. Upon questioning by
Representative Rokeberg, he said that he has not researched
national statistics for seaman cl ai ns.

Nunber 1615

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG not ed that such statistics would be very
interesting because there is such a large discrepancy between
ferry workers and ot her state enpl oyees.

MR. GROSSI said he will research the requested information.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if an enployee's primary health
i nsurance carrier is reinbursed when an enpl oyee wins a workers'
conpensation claim

MR  GROSSI said the private insurance carrier wuld be
rei mbursed by the workers conpensation carrier. However, the
state is self-insured for workers' conpensation

MR ROKEBERG said he was concerned to hear from M. Tseu that

seanen's clainms [through Ri sk Mnagenent's carrier] were not
bei ng properly reinbursed.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -19- March 31, 2003



Nunmber 1559

MR, THOWSON said the average |loss rate of [41] per 100 FTEs
conprises both injuries and illnesses. Workers' conpensati on
typically only responds to an occupational illness, an illness
that arises out of the scope of duties. A seaman has the
ability to file a claimfor any life illness, such as the flu or
a toothache, for exanple. He said that's the real reason the
frequency rate for seanen is significantly different than other
occupational statistics.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked about sick days in addition to the
mai nt enance and cure stipends, whether this is an instance of
doubl e- di ppi ng.

MR. THOWSON said that if a person becones ill during the one-
or two-week voyage, the person |eaves the vessel and receives
wages for the voyage plus the naintenance rate of $45 a doll ar
until reaching maxi num medi cal cure. An enpl oyee can actually
benefit [financially] for tine away fromwrk for an illness not
occupational | y caused.

Number 1461

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if the $45 a day was a type of
per diem while stranded in a "foreign" port after getting ill or
i njured.

M5. COX clarified that the system flies the worker back honme to
the duty port if the person |eaves the ship sick. At hone the
person collects $45 a day until fit for duty. The person al so
collects a full paycheck for the voyage, and no sick leave is
used. A person in that circunstance can get nore noney fromthe
wages and the $45 a day than working a normal shift. After the
end of the voyage, the person who is still out ill or injured
collects the $45 a day and can file leave slips to bring the
anount up to a normal pay check.

M5. COX, answering a question from Representative Gatto, said
t hat wages earned through workers' conpensation are not taxabl e;
it's a percentage of the average net paycheck.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked Ms. Cox about the 1ikelihood of
| awsuits if the bill passes.

Number 1321

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 20- March 31, 2003



M5. COX replied that the Ofice of the Attorney General has been
contacted by the law firm that handles the clains for the
injured and ill Marine H ghways enpl oyees. The attorneys have
rai sed | egal issues and subnitted a neno to the Senate Labor and
Commerce Standing Committee, and her office is preparing a
response. She said she expects if the bill passes, a seanman
unhappy with the workers' conpensation renedy would file a
| awsuit; then the state would file a nption saying seanen no
| onger have the right to file lawsuits. Then, she said, there
woul d be a | egal challenge about whether this bill works, and it
woul d probably end up in the Al aska Suprene Court.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he supports the bill in terns of
reduci ng the state budget.

Number 1251

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to report HB 164 out of commttee
with individual reconmmendations and the acconpanying two fiscal
not es.

Nunber 1234

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG o0bj ect ed. He said he would like to
see concrete values for the [maritime law and workers
conpensation] systenms; he would l|like to see a side-by-side
conpari son of the benefits avail abl e.

CHAI R ANDERSON said he will try to get that information fromthe
Departnent of Law and suggested that Representative QGuttenberg

vote no recommendation on the bill. The bill could then nove on
to the judiciary commttee where the legal issues would be
revi ewed. He said the House Labor and Commerce Standing

Commttee could forward the requested information.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG al so requested information on other
maritime industries to conpare with Al aska's accident rates.

Number 1150
REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG sai d he mai ntai ned his objection.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG suggested that this neans of saving
noney m ght be preferable to grounding sone ferries.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -21- March 31, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD said he is troubled by the bill. He
said if there's $890,000 to be saved, he wants to save it, but
not at the expense of workers' protection. He said he does not

favor noving the bill until the commttee gets nore information.

Nunmber 1064

A roll call vote was taken. Representati ves Gatto, Rokeberg,
Lynn, and Anderson voted in favor of noving HB 164 out of
committee. Representatives Cuttenberg and Crawford voted

against it. Therefore, by a vote of 4-2, HB 164 was reported
out of the House Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee.

HB 169- CHARI TABLE GAM NG REVENUE

Number 1051

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 169, "An Act increasing the anmount of revenue
received by the state from charitable gamng activities; and
providing for an effective date."

Nunmber 0987

LARRY PERSILY, Deputy Comm ssioner, Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
Departnent of Revenue, presented HB 169 on behalf of the

adm ni strati on. He noted that the conmittee nenbers' packets
contain anmendnents proposed by the admnistration. The
amendnents insure that the bill fulfills its intent - to hold
the charities harmess from the additional tax. The anendnent
limts the payout on pull-tabs to no nore than 72 percent;
currently pull-tabs in Alaska are limted to a 78 percent
payout . By reducing the prize payout, additional revenue is
available to flow through to charities so they can pay the
i ncreased tax and be held harmess. In nost cases, according to

the departnent's calculations, the charities would receive nore
revenue for their charitable purposes than they do now under the
exi sting | aw.

Number 0885

MVR. PERSILY testified that the bill, wth the proposed
anmendnents, increases the anmount that goes to charities from
operat ors. Currently 30 percent of adjusted gross income goes
to charities; under this anended bill, it would be 35 percent.
In an operator-run gane, 35 percent of the adjusted gross incone
would go to charities, mnus prizes and federal taxes. The

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -22- March 31, 2003



anended bill would al so change the anount that goes to charities
from vendor-operated ganes. Ri ght now, vendors can retain 30
percent of the ideal gross, which is the amunt of noney that
woul d cone from selling all the pull-tabs in the box mnus the
pri zes. Under this legislation, vendors <could retain 25
percent, thereby increasing the noney going to charities.

MR. PERSILY noted that there is opposition to HB 169, as there
is to any change in charitable gamng and to any increase in the
tax that goes to the state. There is concern in the industry

that if the prize payout is reduced, people will ganme |ess, and
there wll be |less revenue. He testified that if this
| egislation is adopted with a prize payout limt of 72 percent,

Al aska woul d be conpetitive with the national average.
Number 0786

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked whether there's a fixed payout
wi th any box of pull-tabs.

MR. PERSILY replied that all boxes of pull-tabs are sold with a
fixed return. The buyer specifies the desired return: 70
percent, 72 percent, 75 percent or 80 percent payout. Its up to
the purchaser to identify the desired rate of payout.

CHAI R ANDERSON noted that he and many conmttee nenbers sit on
the boards of charities that rely on charitable gamng to

partially fund their organizations. He said he didn't think
that a person playing pull-tabs would notice that the payout was
| ower or would chose not to play for that reason. He asked

whet her the anmendnents to HB 169 would give nbre noney to
charity and rai se state revenues.

Number 0650

MR. PERSILY responded that by lowering the prize payout, it's
the players who are picking up the tab for the tax. He said out
of a $1,000 worth of pull-tabs, instead of $780 in prizes, there
woul d be $720 in prizes. In one sense, it's a user fee - the
pl ayer is the one paying the tax, he said. The charity wites
the check, but it's the player receiving the |ower prize payout
that allows the noney to flow through to the charity to cover
t he tax. This assunes that the anpbunt of gaming activity stays
the sane, and all other revenue stays the sane.

CHAIR ANDERSON disclosed that he is on the board of the
{Anchorage] Big Brothers, Big Sisters organization, which

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -23- March 31, 2003



depends on charitabl e gam ng. He said he is a strong advocate
for charities getting a good return.

Number 579

MR. PERSI LY, replying to a question from Representative
Crawford, noted that a 2001 report from the National Association
of Fundraising Ticket Mnufacturers showed 73 percent as the
average payout for prizes on charitable gam ng.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD nentioned that casino slot machines in
Las Vegas typically pay out 89 percent, and that if that payout
is lowered, people don't play it nearly as nmuch. He said that
there's a point [in gamng, in general] where if people don't
get that return, they stop playing. He asked why casinos aren't
| owering their payout rates if they could do it.

CHAIR ANDERSON noted that casinos have a higher payout rate
because they are for-profit operations, as opposed to the gam ng
in Al aska, which benefits charities.

MR. PERSILY responded that in Las Vegas, it's a matter of
conpetition. In Al aska, there are no casinos and no
conpetition. He said the administration believes that if the
| aw says the maximum prize payout is 72 percent, the ganes are
not going to | ose business to a conpetitor down the street.

Number 0311

JAMES REID, Adm nistrator, Juneau Mbose Lodge, said HB 169 is a
bad bill. Charity organizations of all kinds rely on revenue
from the gamng industry, although it's not sufficient to
conpletely support the charities. He described the |odge's
three nost popular ganmes out of the five ganes they carry:
Criss-Cross with a gross profit of $514, Razzle with $464 gross
profit and payout of 84 percent; and Munbo with a gross profit

of $439 and an 82 percent payout. If the payout on a ganme is
reduced by 14 percent to 72 percent, he questioned whether
patrons are going to continue to play it. O the $514 received

from the [Criss-Cross] gane, he said, $141.06 goes to the
charity after he pays sales tax, the cost of the game, nortgage,
utilities, supplies, and payroll.

MR. REID explained that the Mose Lodge supports nunerous
charities in Juneau including Mose Heart, Mose Haven, Big
Brothers, Big Sisters, dacier Swm Cub, youth football

basebal |, and others. He said that if the state wants to take 5

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 24- March 31, 2003



percent, he wll therefore pay the state an additional $124.45
in taxes, leaving $16.61 for charities. He said as a charity,
t he Mbose Lodge will not be naking nore noney under this bill

TAPE 03-26, SIDE A
Nunber 0012

MR. REID testified that he favored the bill not passing, thereby
avoiding a flood of requests from charities to the state for

| ost revenue. He explained how his noney is tied up from
several days to a nmonth while he sells his boxes of ganes. He
noted that the bill addresses pull-tab operators [for-profit

busi nesses that contract with charities to sell their pull-tabs]
but it doesn't address permt-holders [charities that sell their
own pul |l -tabs].

MR. REID explained at the request of Chair Anderson that an
operator sells pull-tabs out of a pull-tab parlor for various
charities. The Juneau Moose Lodge, the Eagles, the VFW and the
Anmerican Legion are all fraternal organizations that sell pull-
tabs out of their own establishnments and can only sell to their
menbers. Anyone can go into a pull-tab parlor or bar and buy
pul | -tabs, he said. Therefore, the revenue for a fraternal
organi zation [called a permt-holder or a permttee] is |imted
to gaming by its nenbers. If the state doesn't [send] back to
the charities the [noney] they will be losing under this bill
HB 169 is not a good [idea], he said.

Number 0339

DAVI D SANDEN, General WManager, Miltiple-beneficiary permttee
(MBP), Juneau Montessori Center, Southeast Al aska Friends of
Mont essori, and Juneau Dance Unlimted, said the governor made a
m stake by not consulting the gam ng industry when devel oping
HB 169. He said the governor should raise the $12.5 nillion by
using a different approach. He described the three types of
gam ng operations in Al aska. Qperators post a bond wth the
state and sell pull-tabs; their objective is profit, and the
state forces themto give noney to charity. An MBP consists of
several nonprofits who get together and hire a nanager who
reports directly to the charities' boards. The third type is
the self-directed permttee like the Mwose Lodge in Juneau; it
sells its own pull-tabs and is accountable to its nenbers. The
other party is the vendor, for exanple, a bar owner or |iquor
| icense owner, who buys a box of pull-tabs from a nonprofit
group, and then sells the pull-tabs and takes all the risk of
theft.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -25- March 31, 2003



MR. SANDEN said he believes there can be a sustainable gam ng
tax. The governor's proposed 5 percent tax sounds like a snall
nunber, but it's a huge increase. He suggested staying wth the
current 3 percent tax on the ideal net that is paid up front
when buying pull-tab ganes. He proposed increasing that 3
percent tax to 20 percent, having the state collect it and then
distribute back 50 percent to the nunicipalities where it 1is
raised [instead of having |ocal governnents collect their own
sales tax on pull-tabs]. He did support strengthening the
regul ati ons about who can participate in charitabl e gam ng. He
said some |legal permttees are really ghost charities.

Number 0678

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD recalled that last year the commttee
defeated a bill which was a gross receipts tax on al
busi nesses. He said HB 169 |ooks like another gross receipts
tax bill rather than a tax on the profits of gam ng.

Number 0695

BOB LOESCHER, President, Juneau Tlingit & Haida Community
Council; Advisor, Alaska Native Brotherhood [ANB] G and Canp,
explained that these organizations are self-directed social
organi zati ons that have permts for pull-tabs and sone raffles.
He described the bill as ill conceived. He said there's a
di fference between social organizations and conmerci al operators
[for-profit businesses that contract with a charity], especially
in notivation. He said his organization uses the funds to
operate the comunity council buildings, to pay death benefits,
and to fund youth and cultural prograns. Many of these projects
involve no state funding, and there is a real need for this
noney.

MR. LOCESCHER said he believes that gaming is a state concern,
and that municipalities should not be collecting a sales tax.
He said his groups could handle the [increase in the] proposed
state tax if there was not already a Juneau sales tax of 5

percent. If the state caps the winnings at 72 percent, the
market will be substantially depressed, he predicted. He warned
that his groups will be driven out of business, having to pay
the city sales tax, an increased state tax, and |oo0sing
custoners because of the 72 percent cap on prize payout. He
explained that they use the pull-tabs as draw for their bingo
ganes, which doesn't nmake nuch noney either. He wurged the
committee to kill this bill

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 26- March 31, 2003



Number 943

TED BROWN, Al aska | ndoor Sports, explained that his conpany is a

pull -tab distributor. He said he sells pull-tab ganmes around
the state at different payout rates, and he does not believe the
72 percent payout wll work. Such a dramatic change [dropping
the payout rate] at once will cause a downturn in playing, he
predi ct ed. He noted that people get used to a particular gane,
for exanple, Criss Cross, and they wll notice [if there's a
different rate or a different gane being offered]. He suggested

that players be taxed on their winnings rather than the gross
for all the cards they play.

MR BROM said there's no room to increase taxes on charitable

gam ng. After expenses are backed out, what's left goes to
charities; an [increased] tax depletes that even further. To
i ncrease gam ng revenues to the state from $2 mllion to $12.5
mllion won't work, he predicted. The current forrmula is 3
percent of the ideal net or adjusted gross. He descri bed that
as fair and equitable and asked the point of changing a fornula
t hat worKks. The change from 3 percent of the ideal net to 5

percent of the gross on the average gane represents 37 percent
of the profit dollars generated, and he questioned how anyone
can take a 37 percent hit and survive. Charities are not well
organi zed, but they are starting to respond to problens raised
by this bill, he added.

Nunber 1190

MR. BROW\, responding to a question from Chair Anderson,
explained that the eight nost popular games being played in

Juneau, for exanmple, will have to be replaced with new ganes
that have a |ower payout of 72 percent. He said players wll
notice the <change [in their favorite ganmes] and wll not

partici pate.

1275

CHAI R ANDERSON noted that he will hold the bill in commttee and
wi |l keep public testinony open.

Nunmber 1300

DW GHT McBRIDE, Operator, testified that he has been in business
since 1989 and currently operates 13 permts. He noted that
people are trying to grasp what HB 169 will do to the charities.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -27- March 31, 2003



He predicted that he would have to close three of his four
stores. He said this bill will ruin gam ng.

Nunber 1488

LEONARD VELLS introduced hinself as a pull-tab vendor at a bar
and also as an enployee who sells pull-tabs for the American

Legi on. He said that the nmpjority of the [wi tnesses] at the
Senate hearing [on a simlar bill] could not testify because
there also was not enough tine. Regarding HB 169, he pointed

out that the 72 versus the 78 percent [payout] is very inportant
to the [serious] players [who take sonme of their wnnings as
nore pull-tabs or buy-backs]. He said for the people who only
buy a few pull-tabs, the payoff doesn't meke nuch difference
He opposed HB 169 as written.

Number 1584

TIM SM TH, Nonme Fi sherman's Associ ation, explained that there is
[already] a 4 percent city sales tax on gross receipts for pull-
tabs; an additional 5 percent state tax on the gross would take
nearly half (indisc.). Wth this [proposed] ideal net, the cost
of the ganes, accounting, equipnent, supplies, and postage
doesn't leave a lot for the charities. The state can't take [an

additional] $12 million out of charitable gamng wthout it
inpacting the charities, he reasoned. There's only so much
di scretionary [noney available for charitable ganes]. In rura

Al aska, many villages wuse pull-tab sales to fund their
governnment operations because they don't have a big tax base
This is a painless tax that provides for rural governance. The
state will have to nmake that up sonehow if the [villages] |ose
the pull-tab revenue.

MR SMTH said that currently, sone vendors are working for 30
percent. If it is cut back to 25 percent, that's not a very
good deal for the vendors, he said, and it's [already] difficult
to talk some of these vendors into running pull-tabs now. Their
share of the ideal net is 30 percent. They pay for the pull-

tabs up front. They're responsible for the any |osses from
fraud, theft, or errors, and those |osses conme out of their
share. If you reduce their share to 25 percent of the ideal

net, a lot of themwon't vend pull-tabs.
MR. SM TH commented that everyone appreciates the need to raise

nore revenues for the state. He proposed renoving the
prohibition on electronic gam ng machines; they would provide

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 28- March 31, 2003



nore revenue for the state as well as nore revenue for the
charities. His organization opposes HB 169 as witten.

Nunber 1744

DAVI D LAMBERT testified that he runs a fundraising business that
represents 17 nonprofits. He said that this business put about
$1 million into the Fairbanks econony |ast year. Wth a five
percent [increase, his business] would have [|ost $88,500
dollars, 28 [of his enployees] would have lost their jobs and 17

nonprofits would have received $0. He said that it's getting
tougher to operate a business. Rent and payroll costs are going
up every year; there's no room for a 5 percent increase. Most
manuf acturers nmake 72 percent payoff ganes. The Departmnment of
Revenue is giving out false information. The players are very
aware of the percentage [of payout]. Hi s fastest noving games

are the ones that pay out at 85 percent; there's entertai nnment
value in them He asked how many people [actually] support this
bill. He said it would be good to have hearings where everyone
who wanted to testify could testify.

Nunber 1867

JESSE VANDERZANDER, Al aska Qutdoor Council; Alaska Fish &
Wldlife Conservation Fund, explained that about 12,000 people
are nenbers of thee two groups. The two organizations fund

col l ege scholarships for fish and wldlife managenent and for
wonen in outdoor managenent, the collection of oral histories of
hunting and trapping tales, and hunter education, all prograns

that rely on gam ng. He said HB 169 would cripple their
oper ati ons. Their groups have two sources of these funds --
t hrough vendors and operators. If HB 169 passes, the groups'

vendor said he would not run any nore ganes if his margin was
reduced; it's just barely worth it to himnow. M. Vanderzander
said he has to plead with this vendor to run the ganes.
Regarding the operator, if he was cut 50 percent, 5 of his 10

stores would shut down. When one store shuts down, an entire
charity could shut down because that <charity receives 100
percent of its cut fromthat one store. |If the groups' operator

goes out of business, their gamng is totally gone. He said his
organi zati ons have very serious concerns about this |egislation.
Last year their vendor paid $933 in taxes; this bill would
increase it to $7,200. H s organizations oppose HB 169.

Nunber 2001

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -29- March 31, 2003



VWAYNE STEVENS, Executive Director, Kodiak Chanber of Comerce,
stated that the governor proposes to hold harmless the

nonprofits in [changes to the] charitable gamng [statute]. The
transmttal letter for HB 169 describes problens with operators
and references placing the sane restrictions on vendors. The

City of Kodiak disallowed pull-tab operators many years ago,
therefore only nonprofits and vendors are allowed to run

charitable gamng in Kodiak. Reduci ng payout to players wll
reduce participation. VWhile the bill's [proponents] claim to
offset increases in taxes by raising the anpunts paid to
nonprofits, less [playing] wll nean |ess noney for the
nonprofits. M. Stevens predicted that players will nove to on-
line conputer gamng, a serious conpetitor to pull-tabs in
Al aska. The drafters of this bill failed to understand the
psychol ogy of gam ng; passage of this bill wll drive players

away. He urged the committee not to pass HB 169.
Nunmber 2025

DEBBI E BUSSDI EKER, Al aska |Indoor Sports Distributing; Kenai
Peninsula Aerie 3525 Auxiliary, noted that of the $274 mllion
generated by pull-tab gaming [last year], $214 nmillion was paid
out in prizes, leaving $60 nmillion. She asked conmittee nenbers
to consider what portion of the $274 million currently generated
by pull-tab gam ng was generated by 28 percent profit ganes.
She testified that she has repeatedly heard from many players
that they won't be able to play 28 percent profit ganes. She
noted that the players are intelligent people; they play for the
odds. The nunber one ganme currently sold is a 15 percent profit
gane. This bill wll decrease [pull-tab] sales dramatically,
she war ned.

Nunmber 2165

RI CKY GEASE, Executive Director, Kenai Convention and Visitors
Bureau, testified that his group runs a nultiple-beneficiary
permttee with the Peninsula O lers. He sits on the board of
directors of the Kenai Chanber of Commerce and the Kenai Tourism
Mar keting Council, all of which depend on charitable gamng to
run their operations. He said nonprofits exist and are not
taxed for a good reason -- they fill a vital void between
governnment and business. He said it's horrible to solve a
budget crisis on the backs of nonprofits; it takes valuable
noney out of [Alaskan] conmuniti es. He said he doesn't believe
the state should set price Iimts on the free market [of pull-
tab payouts]. He described a payout of 72 percent as an inane
i dea. The 'ideal gross' in this bill is nonopoly noney, he

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 30- March 31, 2003



sai d. He doesn't agree that by changing the current gam ng,

another $17 mllion will flow into the state. He said it's a
matter of putting out an inferior product and expecting people
to pay nore for it. The bill is calculated on the assunption
that gam ng expenses wll drop 13 percent. Last year, his

organi zations paid $3,000 in taxes, calculated on the net; if HB
169 passes, they will pay $30,000 nore taxes based on the idea
net . He said that $30,000 will cone out of his facilities and

out of schol arshi ps. Hi s groups are adamantly opposed to HB
169.
Nunber 2296

JOHN LOPEZ, Denali Gaming Supply, stated that the governor has
recei ved erroneous advice on HB 169. He said he believes there

will be econom c consequences. He said it's not true that
gam ng operates in a vacuum players will not continue to play
with the sane frequency when the prizes are reduced. He
believes the economc burden wll be higher than the tax
benefits gai ned: | oss of jobs, real estate vacancies, and |oss
of services to the community by nonprofits. There are no
provisions [in HB 169] for rising expenses in gam ng operations
and the mandated net proceeds associated with conpliance. In a
gam ng environnment where overhead is heavily regulated, HB 169
will rmake certain gam ng operations nonconpliant or insolvent.

He cited the Departnment of Revenue's information from the
Nat i onal Association of Fundraising Ticket Manufacturers; the
total national average prize payout of 73 percent includes pull-
tabs as well as bingo, raffles, and state lotteries.

TAPE 03-26, SIDE B

Nunber 2375

MR. LOPEZ continued that Al aska has donated |arge suns of noney
to charities by wusing high percentage payout ganes. He said
that charitable gam ng is shrinking nationwide. This bill gives

no consideration to the anpbunt of prizes that a player gives
back.

Nunber 2275

JI' M PEOT, General WManager, Whal er Casino Supply, stated that he
distributes pull-tab supplies to people who vend them t hroughout
the state. He said he is vehenently opposed to HB 169. He
agreed with earlier cooments that the market is dictated by the
pl ayers. The average profit on pull-tabs is far less than 28
percent. He disagreed with earlier testinony that proposed a 20

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -31- March 31, 2003



percent tax on ideal net tax instead of a 5 percent gross; that
woul d be the equivalent of a 650 percent tax increase for the
charities. |If HB 169 passes, M. Peot predicted that there wll
be a lot less noney for charities and for operators. He said
that players are not going to pay nore noney for the pull-tabs.
Pl ayers have a fixed anount of noney that is either gone in 20
mnutes or an hour; they won't be comng in with nore noney.
The whole premise of [HB 169] that players will cone up wth
extra noney for the [l ower payout] ganmes is way off the mark.

Number 2157

GENE HANSEN, Al aska State Fraternal Oder of Eagles; Aerie 1037
Far North Eagles, noted that the state Eagles have one permt
with one vendor, which produces $11,000 to $15,000 gross incone
per year. He listed the numerous causes that would receive |ess
noney [if HB 169 passes]. Many people, such as famlies whose
houses burn down, have no other source of assistance. He asked
the conmmttee not to pass HB 169.

Number 2080

GREG PETERSON, enployee, Alaska Indoor Sports Distributing,
commented that he is offended that the adm nistration so quickly
di sm sses the grass roots, genuine public outcry against this
bill. He said [opponents of HB 169] are people who know what
harm this legislation will bring on their comunities and on
their charities. He urged the commttee to hold the bill

[HB 169 was hel d over.]
ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
5:50 p.m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -32- March 31, 2003



